

ENGROSSED HOUSE AMENDMENTS
TO
ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 814

BY: DOUGLASS of the SENATE
and
WORTHEN of the HOUSE

AN ACT RELATING TO VEHICLE ACCIDENTS; AMENDING 47
O.S. 1991, SECTION 10-102, WHICH RELATES TO
ACCIDENTS INVOLVING DEATH OR PERSONAL INJURY;
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY.

AUTHORS: Add the following House Coauthors: POPE and CALDWELL

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Page 1, lines 7 1/2 through 10, strike the title
to read

"(VEHICLE ACCIDENTS - AMENDING 47 O.S. 1991,
SECTION 10-102 - ACCIDENTS INVOLVING DEATH OR
PERSONAL INJURY - CODIFICATION -
EMERGENCY)"

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Page 1, line 13 1/2, insert new Sections 1 through
6 to read

"SECTION 1. AMENDATORY 22 O.S. 1991, Section 991a, is
amended to read as follows:

Section 991a. A. Except as otherwise provided in the Elderly
and Incapacitated Victims Protection Program, when a defendant is
convicted of a crime and no death sentence is imposed, the court
shall either:

1. suspend the execution of sentence in whole or in part, with or without probation. The court, in addition, may order the convicted defendant at the time of sentencing or at any time during the suspended sentence to do one or more of the following:

- a. To provide restitution to the victim according to a schedule of payments established by the sentencing court, together with interest upon any pecuniary sum at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum, if the defendant agrees to pay such restitution or, in the opinion of the court, if he is able to pay such restitution without imposing manifest hardship on the defendant or his immediate family and if the extent of the damage to the victim is determinable with reasonable certainty, or
- b. To reimburse any state agency for amounts paid by the state agency for hospital and medical expenses incurred by the victim or victims, as a result of the criminal act for which such person was convicted, which reimbursement shall be made directly to the state agency, with interest accruing thereon at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum, or
- c. To engage in a term of community service without compensation, according to a schedule consistent with the employment and family responsibilities of the person convicted, or
- d. To pay a reasonable sum into any trust fund, established pursuant to the provisions of Sections 176 through 180.4 of Title 60 of the Oklahoma Statutes, and which provides restitution payments by convicted defendants to victims of crimes committed within the State of Oklahoma wherein such victim has incurred a financial loss, or

- e. To confinement in the county jail for a period not to exceed six (6) months, or
- f. To reimburse the court fund for amounts paid to court-appointed attorneys for representing the defendant in the case in which he is being sentenced, or
- g. To repay the reward or part of the reward paid by a certified local crimestoppers program and the Oklahoma Reward System. In determining whether the defendant shall repay the reward or part of the reward, the court shall consider the ability of the defendant to make the payment, the financial hardship on the defendant to make the required payment, and the importance of the information to the prosecution of the defendant as provided by the arresting officer or the district attorney with due regard for the confidentiality of the records of the certified local crimestoppers program and the Oklahoma Reward System. The court shall assess this repayment against the defendant as a cost of prosecution. "Certified local crimestoppers program" means a crimestoppers program certified by the Office of the Attorney General pursuant to Section 991g of this title. The "Oklahoma General Reward System" means the reward program established by Section 150.18 of Title 74 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

However, any such order for restitution, community service, payment to a certified local crimestoppers program, payment to the Oklahoma Reward System, or confinement in the county jail, or a combination thereof, shall be made in conjunction with probation and shall be made a condition of the suspended sentence; ~~or~~

2. impose a fine prescribed by law for the offense, with or without probation or commitment and with or without restitution or service as provided for in this section;

3. commit such person for confinement provided for by law with or without restitution as provided for in this section;

4. in the case of nonviolent felony offenses, sentence such person to the Community Service Sentencing Program created pursuant to Section 991a-4 of this title; ~~or~~

5. in addition to the other sentencing powers of the court, in the case of a person convicted of operating or being in control of a motor vehicle while the person was under the influence of alcohol, other intoxicating substance, or a combination of alcohol or another intoxicating substance, or convicted of operating a motor vehicle while the ability of the person to operate such vehicle was impaired due to the consumption of alcohol, require such person:

- a. To participate in an alcohol and drug substance abuse course or treatment program, pursuant to Sections ~~11-902.2~~ 3-452 and ~~11-902.3~~ 3-453 of Title ~~47~~ 43A of the Oklahoma Statutes,
- b. To attend a victims impact panel program ~~sponsored by the Highway Safety Division of the Oklahoma Department of Transportation,~~ if such a program is offered in the county where the judgment is rendered, and to pay a fee, not ~~to exceed~~ less than Five Dollars (\$5.00) nor more than Fifteen Dollars (\$15.00) as set by the governing authority of the program and approved by the court, to the program to offset the cost of participation by the defendant, if in the opinion of the court the defendant has the ability to pay such fee,
- c. To both participate in the alcohol and drug substance abuse course, pursuant to subparagraph a of this

paragraph and attend a victims impact panel program, pursuant to subparagraph b of this paragraph,

d. To install an ignition interlock device, at the person's own expense, approved by the Department of Public Safety, upon every motor vehicle operated by such person and to require that a notation of this restriction be affixed to the person's driver's license at the time of reinstatement of the license. Said restriction shall remain on the driver's license for such period as the court shall determine. The restriction may be modified or removed by order of the court and notice of said order shall be given to the Department of Public Safety. Upon the expiration of the period for the restriction, the Department of Public Safety shall remove the restriction without further court order. Failure to comply with the order to install an ignition interlock device or operating any vehicle without such device during the period of restriction shall be a violation of the sentence and may be punished as deemed proper by the sentencing court,

e. Beginning January 1, 1993, to submit to electronically monitored home detention administered and supervised by the Department of Corrections, and to pay to the Department a monitoring fee, not to exceed Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00) a month, to the Department of Corrections, if in the opinion of the court the defendant has the ability to pay such fee. Any fees collected pursuant to this subparagraph shall be deposited in the Department of Corrections Revolving Fund. Any order by the court for the payment of the

monitoring fee, if willfully disobeyed, may be enforced as an indirect contempt of court; or

6. in addition to the other sentencing powers of the court, in the case of a person convicted of prostitution pursuant to Section 1029 of Title 21 of the Oklahoma Statutes, require such person to receive counseling for the behavior which may have caused such person to engage in prostitution activities. Such person may be required to receive counseling in areas including but not limited to alcohol and substance abuse, sexual behavior problems, or domestic abuse or child abuse problems.

B. When sentencing a person convicted of a crime, the court shall first consider a program of restitution for the victim, as well as imposition of a fine or incarceration of the offender. The provisions of paragraph 1 of subsection A of this section shall not apply to defendants being sentenced upon their third or subsequent to their third conviction of a felony or, beginning January 1, 1993, to defendants being sentenced for their second or subsequent felony conviction for violation of Section 11-902 of Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes, except as otherwise provided in this subsection. In the case of a person being sentenced for their second or subsequent felony conviction for violation of Section 11-902 of Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes, the court may sentence the person pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 1 of subsection A of this section if the court orders the person to submit to electronically monitored home detention administered and supervised by the Department of Corrections pursuant to subparagraph e of paragraph 5 of subsection A of this section.

C. Probation, for purposes of subsection A of this section, is a procedure by which a defendant found guilty of a crime is released by the court subject to conditions imposed by the court and subject to the supervision of the Department of Corrections. Such supervision shall be initiated upon an order of probation from the

court, and shall not exceed two (2) years. However, such supervision may be extended for a period not to exceed the expiration of the maximum term or terms of the sentence upon a determination by the Division of Probation and Parole of the Department of Corrections that the best interests of the public and the releasee will be served by an extended period of supervision.

D. The Department of Corrections, or such other agency as the court may designate, shall be responsible for the monitoring and administration of the restitution and service programs provided for by subparagraphs a, c, and d of paragraph 1 of subsection A of this section, and shall ensure that restitution payments are forwarded to the victim and that service assignments are properly performed.

E. 1. The Division of Probation and Parole of the Department of Corrections is hereby authorized, subject to funds available through appropriation by the Legislature, to contract with counties for the administration of county Community Service Sentencing Programs.

2. Any offender eligible to participate in the Program pursuant to this act shall be eligible to participate in a county Program; provided, participation in county-funded Programs shall not be limited to offenders who would otherwise be sentenced to confinement with the Department of Corrections.

3. The Division shall establish criteria and specifications for contracts with counties for such Programs. A county may apply to the Division for a contract for a county-funded Program for a specific period of time. The Department shall be responsible for ensuring that any contracting county complies in full with specifications and requirements of the contract. The contract shall set appropriate compensation to the county for services to the Division.

4. The Division is hereby authorized to provide technical assistance to any county in establishing a Program, regardless of

whether the county enters into a contract pursuant to this subsection. Technical assistance shall include appropriate staffing, development of community resources, sponsorship, supervision and any other requirements set forth in this act.

5. The Department shall annually make a report to the Governor, the President Pro Tempore of the Senate and the Speaker of the House on the number of such Programs, the number of participating offenders, the success rates of each Program according to criteria established by the Department and the costs of each Program.

F. As used in this section:

1. "Ignition interlock device" means a device that, without tampering or intervention by another person, would prevent the defendant from operating a motor vehicle if the defendant has a blood or breath alcohol concentration of five-hundredths (0.05) or greater.

2. "Electronically monitored home detention" means incarceration of the defendant within a specified location or locations with monitoring by means of a device approved by the Department of Corrections that detects if the person leaves the confines of any specified location.

SECTION 2. AMENDATORY 28 O.S. 1991, Section 153, is amended to read as follows:

Section 153. The clerks of the courts shall collect as costs in every criminal case for each offense of which the defendant is convicted, irrespective of whether or not the sentence is deferred, the following flat charges and no more, except for charges otherwise provided for by law, which fee shall cover docketing of the case, filing of all papers, issuance of process, warrants, orders, and other services to date of judgment:

For each defendant convicted of
a misdemeanor, including
violation of any traffic

law, other than for driving
under the influence of alcohol
or other intoxicating substance,
whether charged
individually or conjointly
with others \$70.00

For each defendant convicted of
a felony, other than for driving
under the influence of alcohol or
other intoxicating substance,
whether charged
individually or conjointly
with others \$90.00

For each defendant convicted of
the misdemeanor of driving under
the influence of alcohol or other
intoxicating substance, whether
charged individually or
conjointly with others ~~\$170.00~~ \$220.00

For each defendant convicted of the
felony of driving under the influence
of alcohol or other intoxicating
substance, whether charged individually
or conjointly with others ~~\$170.00~~ \$220.00

For the services of a court reporter at
each trial held in the case \$20.00

For each time a jury is requested \$30.00

A sheriff's fee for serving or
endeavoring to serve each
writ, warrant, order,
process, command, or
notice or pursuing any

fugitive from justice \$20.00 or
mileage as established
by the Oklahoma
Statutes, whichever
is greater.

Prior to conviction, parties in criminal cases shall not be required to pay, advance, or post security for the issuance or service of process to obtain compulsory attendance of witnesses. These fees shall be deposited into the court fund except that the sheriff's fee provided for in this section and the amount provided for in Section 153.2 of this title, when collected, shall be transferred to the Sheriff's Service Fee Account, created pursuant to the provisions of Section 514.1 of Title 19 of the Oklahoma Statutes, of the sheriff in the county in which service is made or attempted. Thirteen Dollars (\$13.00) of the fee collected for every criminal case for each offense of which the defendant is convicted, irrespective of whether or not the sentence is deferred, shall be dedicated to the Indigent Defense System Revolving Fund. Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) from each fee for conviction of driving under the influence of alcohol or other intoxicating substance shall be deposited in the Department of Corrections Revolving Fund.

SECTION 3. AMENDATORY 28 O.S. 1991, Section 153.1, is amended to read as follows:

Section 153.1 In any case in which a defendant is charged with driving under the influence of alcohol or other intoxicating substance within a municipality with a municipal court other than a court of record, one-half (1/2) of the costs charged in said case as provided for in Section 153 of Title 28 of the Oklahoma Statutes, after the first Thirteen Dollars (\$13.00) which is dedicated to the Indigent Defense System Revolving Fund ~~has~~ and Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) which is dedicated to the Department of Corrections Revolving Fund have been subtracted, shall be paid to the

municipality to be used to defer the cost of such prosecution to the municipality if the arresting officer was an employee of the municipality's law enforcement agency.

SECTION 4. AMENDATORY 43A O.S. 1991, Section 3-452, is amended to read as follows:

Section 3-452. ~~In~~ Except as otherwise provided by law, in any case in a municipal or district court of proper jurisdiction wherein the defendant is charged with actual physical control of or operation of a motor vehicle while under the influence of or impaired by alcohol or a drug, the court may:

A. Upon a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, or stipulation by the defendant, or a verdict, but before a judgment of guilt is entered, without entering a judgment of guilt and with the consent of the defendant, defer further proceedings upon the condition that the defendant enroll in, attend and successfully complete, at his own expense, an alcohol and drug substance abuse course or an alcohol and drug substance abuse treatment program as provided by Section ~~67~~ 3-453 of this ~~act~~ title; or

B. Upon a conviction, suspend the execution of sentence, with or without probation, upon the condition that the defendant enroll in, attend and successfully complete, at his own expense, an alcohol and drug substance abuse course or an alcohol and drug substance abuse treatment program as provided by Section ~~67~~ 3-453 of this ~~act~~ title.

SECTION 5. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 1991, Section 11-902, is amended to read as follows:

Section 11-902. A. It is unlawful and punishable as provided in ~~subsection C~~ of this section for any person to drive, operate, or be in actual physical control of a motor vehicle within this state who:

1. Has a blood or breath alcohol concentration, as defined in Section 756 of this title, of ten-hundredths (0.10) or more at the

time of a test of such person's blood or breath administered within two (2) hours after the arrest of such person;

2. Is under the influence of alcohol;

3. Is under the influence of any other intoxicating substance to a degree which renders such person incapable of safely driving or operating a motor vehicle; or

4. Is under the combined influence of alcohol and any other intoxicating substance to a degree which renders such person incapable of safely driving or operating a motor vehicle.

B. The fact that any person charged with a violation of this section is or has been lawfully entitled to use alcohol or a controlled dangerous substance or any other intoxicating substance shall not constitute a defense against any charge of violating this section.

As used in this title, the term "other intoxicating substance" shall mean any controlled dangerous substance as defined in the Uniform Controlled Dangerous Substances Act, Section 2-101 et seq. of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes, and any other substance, other than alcohol, which is capable of being ingested, inhaled, injected, or absorbed into the human body and is capable of adversely affecting the central nervous system, vision, hearing or other sensory or motor functions.

C. Every person who is convicted of a violation of the provisions of this section shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor for the first offense and shall be punished by imprisonment in jail for not less than ten (10) days nor more than one (1) year, and a fine of not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00). Any person who within ten (10) years after a previous conviction of a violation of this section is convicted of a second or subsequent offense pursuant to the provisions of this section or has a prior conviction after October 31, 1984, and within ten (10) years prior to the conviction pursuant to the provisions of this section, in a

municipal criminal court of record for the violation of a municipal ordinance prohibiting the offense provided for in subsection A of this section shall be deemed guilty of a felony and shall be sentenced to the custody of the Department of Corrections for not less than one (1) year and not to exceed five (5) years, and a fine of not more than Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$2,500.00).

D. When a sentence of incarceration is imposed, the person shall be processed through the Lexington Assessment and Reception Center. The Department of Corrections shall:

1. Assign the person to the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services pursuant to subsection E of this section;

2. Place the person under electronically monitored home detention and, if appropriate, require completion of a substance abuse treatment plan, pursuant to subsection F of this section; or

3. Place the person in an institution operated by the Department of Corrections.

E. If the person is evaluated to be receptive to treatment and not deemed by the Department of Corrections to be a security risk, the person ~~shall~~ may be assigned to the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services for substance abuse treatment. The inmate shall be required to reimburse the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services for all or part of the actual cost incurred for treatment of the inmate while the inmate was assigned to the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services, if at the time the sentence of incarceration was imposed, the court determined that the convicted person has the ability to pay for all or part of the cost of treatment. The court shall determine the amount of reimbursement the convicted person shall pay. Any order by the court requiring such reimbursement, if willfully disobeyed, may be enforced as an indirect contempt of court. While assigned to ~~such~~ a Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services treatment program the inmate shall comply

with the rules and regulations as agreed upon by the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services and the Department of Corrections. Any infraction of said rules may result in the inmate's reassignment to a correctional facility of the Department of Corrections. Upon successful completion of the treatment program the person shall be properly reassigned by the Department of Corrections for the completion of the sentence imposed by the court. Prior to discharge from the treatment facility, the treatment facility shall forward to the Department of Corrections a report and discharge summary including arrangements and recommendations for further disposition and follow-up treatment. If the person is evaluated not to be receptive to treatment or is evaluated to be a security risk, the inmate shall be assigned to a state correctional facility according to normal Department of Corrections classification procedures.

F. If the person is evaluated to be receptive to treatment and not deemed by the Department of Corrections to be a security risk, the Department may place the person on electronically monitored home detention and, if deemed appropriate by the Department, require the person to complete a substance abuse treatment plan selected by the Department as a condition of Preparole Conditional Supervision, when approved by the Pardon and Parole Board. As used in this subsection, "substance abuse treatment plan" means a residential or outpatient program certified by the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services to provide substance abuse treatment and "electronically monitored home detention" means incarceration of the person within a specified location or locations with monitoring by means of a device approved by the Department of Corrections that detects if the person leaves the confines of any specified location. The inmate shall be required to pay the Department of Corrections for all or part of the monitoring fee and pay the entity providing the substance abuse treatment plan for all or part of the cost of

the plan, if at the time the sentence of incarceration is imposed the court determines that the convicted person has the ability to pay for all or part of the monitoring fee and, if appropriate, treatment plan. The monitoring fee shall not exceed Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00) a month. The court shall determine the amount of the monitoring fee and treatment plan costs the convicted person shall pay. Any order by the court for the payment of the monitoring fee or treatment plan costs, if willfully disobeyed, may be enforced as an indirect contempt of court. If the person is evaluated not to be receptive to treatment or is evaluated to be a security risk, the inmate shall be assigned to a state correctional facility according to normal Department of Corrections classification procedures. Any violation of the electronically monitored home detention or the treatment plan or any other condition of Preparole Conditional Supervision may result in the inmate's reassignment to a correctional facility of the Department of Corrections.

G. In the event a felony conviction does not result in a sentence of incarceration as provided for in this subsection, the person shall be required to serve not less than ten (10) days of community service, or to undergo in-patient rehabilitation or treatment in a public or private facility with at least minimum security for a period of not less than forty-eight (48) consecutive hours, notwithstanding the provisions of Sections 991a, 991a-2 and 996.3 of Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

~~D.~~ H. The Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services and the Department of Corrections may certify to the Department of Public Safety that a person has successfully completed a treatment program provided for in subsection ~~C~~ E of this section and is successfully complying with any follow-up treatment required by the Department of Corrections. In such case, the person shall be given credit therefor as fulfillment of all provisions of Section ~~11-902.3 of this title~~ 3-453 of Title 43A of the Oklahoma Statutes

and shall be permitted to apply for reinstatement of any suspension, revocation, cancellation or denial order withdrawing his privilege to drive.

I. The Department of Public Safety is hereby authorized to reinstate any suspended or revoked license when the applicant meets the statutory requirements which affect his existing driving privilege, provided a notation of conviction shall be affixed to said license for second and subsequent convictions of violating this section. Said notation shall remain on the license for five (5) years from the date of the latest conviction.

~~E.~~ J. Any person who is found guilty of a violation of the provisions of this section may be referred, prior to sentencing, to an alcoholism evaluation facility designated by the Department of Mental Health and Substance Abuse Services for the purpose of evaluating the receptivity to treatment and prognosis of the person. The court shall order the person to reimburse the facility for the evaluation in an amount not to exceed Seventy-five Dollars (\$75.00). The facility shall, within seventy-two (72) hours, submit a written report to the court for the purpose of assisting the court in its final sentencing determination.

K. Any person who is found guilty of a violation of the provisions of this section may be required by the court to attend a victims impact panel program, if such a program is offered in the county where the judgment is rendered, and to pay a fee, not less than Five Dollars (\$5.00) nor more than Fifteen Dollars (\$15.00) as set by the governing authority of the program and approved by the court, to the program to offset the cost of participation by the defendant, if in the opinion of the court the defendant has the ability to pay such fee.

SECTION 6. AMENDATORY 57 O.S. 1991, Section 557, is amended to read as follows:

Section 557. A. There is hereby created in the State Treasury a revolving fund for the Department of Corrections to be known as the Department of Corrections Revolving Fund. This revolving fund shall consist of monies received by each institution of the Department as reimbursements for noninmate individual food consumption; reimbursements from other state agencies and entities of government; receipts from sale of excess by-products, excess property, and salvage items; receipts from other ancillary services of the institution, not otherwise provided by law; receipts from the fee provided for in Section 991d of Title 22 of the Oklahoma Statutes; monitoring fees for electronically monitored home detention; receipts from the fees provided for in Section 153 of Title 28 of the Oklahoma Statutes for convictions for driving under the influence of alcohol or other intoxicating substance; monies received for providing primary health care and outpatient services to prisoners in county jails; receipts by the Department for institutional care from wages earned by inmates while participating in the work release program; funds for prison rodeos and other special events; and any other receipts accruing to the credit of the Department of Corrections which are not directed by law to be deposited in another fund. Expenditures from said fund shall be for the general operating expenses of the Department of Corrections.

B. The Department of Corrections Revolving Fund shall also consist of those monies that are transferred to it by the Department of Corrections from the Industries Revolving Fund of the Department of Corrections for purposes as provided for in Section 541 of this title and expenditures shall be in accordance therewith. On July 1, 1983, any cash remaining in the Department of Corrections Industries Subsidiary Revolving Fund in excess of allotment balances or encumbrances for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1983, shall be transferred to the Department of Corrections Revolving Fund and on November 15, 1983, all cash remaining in the Department of

Corrections Industries Subsidiary Revolving Fund shall be transferred to the Department of Corrections Revolving Fund.

C. The fund created by subsection A of this section shall be a continuing fund, under the control of the administrative authority of the Department of Corrections, and not subject to fiscal year limitations. Expenditures shall be made pursuant to the laws of the state and the statutes relating to the Department of Corrections and its institutions, and without legislative appropriation. Warrants for expenditures from said revolving fund shall be based on claims signed by an authorized employee or employees of the Department of Corrections and approved for payment by the Director of State Finance."

and renumber the existing Section 1 as Section 7
and insert a new Section 8 to read

"SECTION 8. Sections 1 through 6 of this act shall become effective January 1, 1993."

and renumber subsequent section

and when title is restored, amend accordingly

AMENDMENT NO. 3. Page 2, line 20 1/2, insert new Sections 3 and 4 to read

"SECTION 3. AMENDATORY 3 O.S. 1991, Section 303, is amended to read as follows:

Section 303. A. Only a licensed medical doctor, licensed osteopathic physician, licensed chiropractic physician, registered nurse, licensed practical nurse, physician's assistant, certified by the State Board of Medical Licensure and Supervision, an employee of a hospital or other health care facility authorized by the hospital or health care facility to withdraw blood, or other qualified person authorized by the Board of Tests for Alcohol and Drug Influence acting at the request of a law enforcement officer may withdraw blood for purpose of having a determination made of its concentration of alcohol or other intoxicant. Only qualified

persons authorized by the Board may collect breath, saliva or urine, or administer tests of breath under the provisions of Sections ~~±~~ 301 through ~~§~~ 308 of this ~~act~~ title.

B. No person specified in subsection A of this section, no employer of such a person, and no hospital or other health care facility where blood is withdrawn, shall incur any civil or criminal liability as a result of the proper withdrawal of blood when acting at the request of a law enforcement officer pursuant to the provisions of Section ~~±~~ 302 or ~~4~~ 304 of this ~~act~~ title, if the withdrawal of blood is performed in a reasonable manner according to generally accepted clinical practice. If the person specified in subsection A of this section is presented with a written statement by the person whose blood is to be withdrawn or a duly authorized peace officer that the person whose blood is to be withdrawn has agreed to the withdrawal of blood or an order from a court of competent jurisdiction that blood be withdrawn, the person authorized to withdraw the blood and the hospital or other health care facility where the withdrawal occurs may rely on such a statement or order as evidence that the person has consented to or has been required to submit to the clinical procedure and shall not require the person to sign any additional consent or waiver form. In such a case, the person authorized to perform the procedure, the employer of such person, and the hospital or other health care facility shall not be liable in any action alleging lack of consent or lack of informed consent. No person specified in subsection A of this section shall incur any civil or criminal liability as a result of the proper collection of breath, saliva or urine when acting at the request of a law enforcement officer under the provisions of Section ~~±~~ 302 or ~~4~~ 304 of this ~~act~~ title or when acting pursuant to court order.

C. The blood, breath, saliva or urine specimens obtained shall be tested by the appropriate test as determined by the Board to

determine the alcohol concentration thereof, or the presence and concentration of any other intoxicant which might have affected the ability of the person tested to operate an aircraft safely.

D. When blood is withdrawn or saliva or urine is collected for the appropriate test as determined by the Board of its alcohol or other intoxicant concentration, at the request of a law enforcement officer, a sufficient quantity of the same specimen shall be obtained to enable the tested person, at his or her own option and expense, to have an independent analysis made of such specimen. The excess blood, saliva or urine specimen shall be retained by a laboratory approved by the Board, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Board, for sixty (60) days from the date of collection. At any time within that period, the tested person or his or her attorney may direct that such blood, saliva or urine specimen be sent or delivered to a laboratory of his or her own choosing and approved by the Board for an independent analysis. Neither the tested person, nor any agent of such person, shall have access to the additional blood, saliva or urine specimen prior to the completion of the independent analysis, except the analyst performing the independent analysis and agents of the analyst.

E. When a test of breath is performed for the purpose of determining the alcohol concentration thereof, except when such test is performed by means of an automated analyzer as designated by the Board, a sufficient quantity of breath, or of the alcohol content of a fixed or measured quantity of breath, shall be obtained, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Board, to enable the tested person, at his or her own option and expense, to have an independent analysis made of such specimen. The excess specimen of breath, or of its alcohol content, shall be retained by the law enforcement agency employing the arresting officer, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Board, for sixty (60) days from the date of collection. At any time within that period, the

tested person, or his or her attorney, may direct that such specimen be sent or delivered to a laboratory of his or her own choosing and approved by the Board for an independent analysis. Neither the tested person, nor any agent of such person, shall have access to the additional specimen of breath, or of its alcohol content, prior to the completion of the independent analysis thereof, except the analyst performing the independent analysis and agents of the analyst.

F. The costs of collecting blood, breath, saliva or urine specimens for the purpose of determining the alcohol or other intoxicant thereof, by or at the direction of a law enforcement officer, shall be borne by the law enforcement agency employing such officer. The cost of collecting, retaining and sending or delivering to an independent laboratory the excess specimens of blood, breath, saliva or urine for independent analysis at the option of the tested person shall also be borne by such law enforcement agency. The cost of the independent analysis of such specimen of blood, breath, saliva or urine shall be borne by the tested person at whose option such analysis is performed. The tested person, or his or her agent, shall make all necessary arrangements for the performance of such independent analysis other than the forwarding or delivery of such specimen.

G. Tests pursuant to the provisions of Sections ~~4~~ 301 through ~~8~~ 308 of this ~~act~~ title, whether administered by or at the direction of a law enforcement officer or administered independently, at the option of the tested person, ~~on the excess specimen of such person's blood, breath, saliva or urine,~~ to be considered valid and admissible in evidence under the provisions of this section and Section ~~5~~ 305 of this ~~act~~ title, shall have been administered or performed in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Board.

H. Any person who has been arrested for any offense arising out of acts alleged to have been committed while the person was under

the influence of an intoxicant and was operating an aircraft, who is not requested by a law enforcement officer to submit to a test shall be entitled to have an independent test of his or her blood, breath, saliva or urine which is appropriate as determined by the Board for the purpose of determining its alcohol concentration or of any other intoxicant therein, performed by a person of his or her own choosing who is qualified as stipulated in this section. The arrested person shall bear the responsibility for making all necessary arrangements for the administration of such independent test and for the independent analysis of any specimens obtained, and bear all costs thereof. The failure or inability of the arrested person to obtain an independent test shall not preclude the admission of other competent evidence bearing upon the question of whether such person was under the influence of an intoxicant.

I. A written report of the results of the test administered by or at the direction of the law enforcement officer shall be made available to the tested person, or his or her attorney, to the law enforcement agency employing the arresting officer, the district attorney of the county in which the alleged violation of Section ~~4~~ 301 of this ~~act~~ title occurred, and to the Federal Aviation Administration Flight Standards District Office having jurisdiction over the county in which the alleged violation of Section ~~4~~ 301 of this ~~act~~ title occurred. The results of the tests provided for in this title shall be admissible in civil actions.

SECTION 4. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 1991, Section 752, is amended to read as follows:

Section 752. A. Only a licensed medical doctor, licensed osteopathic physician, licensed chiropractic physician, registered nurse, licensed practical nurse, physician's assistant, certified by the State Board of Medical Licensure and Supervision, an employee of a hospital or other health care facility authorized by the hospital or health care facility to withdraw blood, or other qualified person

authorized by the Board of Tests for Alcohol and Drug Influence acting at the request of a law enforcement officer may withdraw blood for purpose of having a determination made of its concentration of alcohol or other intoxicating substance. Only qualified persons authorized by the Board may collect breath, saliva or urine, or administer tests of breath under the provisions of this title.

B. If the person authorized to withdraw blood as specified in subsection A of this section is presented with a written statement:

1. Authorizing blood withdrawal signed by the person whose blood is to be withdrawn;

2. Signed by a duly authorized peace officer that the person whose blood is to be withdrawn has agreed to the withdrawal of blood;

3. Signed by a duly authorized peace officer that the person whose blood is to be withdrawn has been placed under arrest and that the officer has probable cause to believe that the person, while intoxicated, has operated a motor vehicle in such manner as to have caused the death or serious physical injury of another person; or

4. In the form of an order from a district court that blood be withdrawn, the person authorized to withdraw the blood and the hospital or other health care facility where the withdrawal occurs may rely on such a statement or order as evidence that the person has consented to or has been required to submit to the clinical procedure and shall not require the person to sign any additional consent or waiver form. In such a case, the person authorized to perform the procedure, the employer of such person, and the hospital or other health care facility shall not be liable in any action alleging lack of consent or lack of informed consent.

C. No person specified in subsection A of this section, no employer of such person, and no hospital or other health care facility where blood is withdrawn shall incur any civil or criminal

liability as a result of the proper withdrawal of blood when acting at the request of a law enforcement officer by the provisions of Section 751 or 753 of this title, or when acting in reliance upon a signed statement or court order as provided in this section, if the act is performed in a reasonable manner according to generally accepted clinical practice. No person specified in subsection A of this section shall incur any civil or criminal liability as a result of the proper collection of breath, saliva or urine when acting at the request of a law enforcement officer under the provisions of Section 751 or 753 of this title or when acting pursuant to a court order.

D. The blood, breath, saliva or urine specimens obtained shall be tested by the appropriate test as determined by the Board to determine the alcohol concentration thereof, or the presence and concentration of any other intoxicating substance which might have affected the ability of the person tested to operate a motor vehicle safely.

E. When blood is withdrawn or saliva or urine is collected for the appropriate test as determined by the Board of its alcohol or other intoxicating substance concentration, at the request of a law enforcement officer, a sufficient quantity of the same specimen shall be obtained to enable the tested person, at his or her own option and expense, to have an independent analysis made of such specimen. The excess blood, saliva or urine specimen shall be retained by a laboratory approved by the Board, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Board, for sixty (60) days from the date of collection. At any time within that period, the tested person or his or her attorney may direct that such blood, saliva or urine specimen be sent or delivered to a laboratory of his or her own choosing and approved by the Board for an independent analysis. Neither the tested person, nor any agent of such person, shall have access to the additional blood, saliva or urine specimen prior to

the completion of the independent analysis, except the analyst performing the independent analysis and agents of the analyst.

F. When a test of breath is performed for the purpose of determining the alcohol concentration thereof, except when such test is performed by means of an automated analyzer as designated by the Board, a sufficient quantity of breath, or of the alcohol content of a fixed or measured quantity of breath, shall be obtained, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Board, to enable the tested person, at his or her own option and expense, to have an independent analysis made of such specimen. The excess specimen of breath, or of its alcohol content, shall be retained by the law enforcement agency employing the arresting officer, in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Board, for sixty (60) days from the date of collection. At any time within that period, the tested person, or his or her attorney, may direct that such specimen be sent or delivered to a laboratory of his or her own choosing and approved by the Board for an independent analysis. Neither the tested person, nor any agent of such person, shall have access to the additional specimen of breath, or of its alcohol content, prior to the completion of the independent analysis thereof, except the analyst performing the independent analysis and agents of the analyst.

G. The costs of collecting blood, breath, saliva or urine specimens for the purpose of determining the alcohol or other intoxicating substance thereof, by or at the direction of a law enforcement officer, shall be borne by the law enforcement agency employing such officer. The cost of collecting, retaining and sending or delivering to an independent laboratory the excess specimens of blood, breath, saliva or urine for independent analysis at the option of the tested person shall also be borne by such law enforcement agency. The cost of the independent analysis of such specimen of blood, breath, saliva or urine shall be borne by the

tested person at whose option such analysis is performed. The tested person, or his or her agent, shall make all necessary arrangements for the performance of such independent analysis other than the forwarding or delivery of such specimen.

H. Tests of blood or breath for the purpose of determining the alcohol concentration thereof, and tests of blood, saliva or urine for the purpose of determining the presence and concentration of any other intoxicating substance therein, under the provisions of this title, whether administered by or at the direction of a law enforcement officer or administered independently, at the option of the tested person, ~~on the excess specimen of such person's blood, breath, saliva or urine,~~ to be considered valid and admissible in evidence under the provisions of this title, shall have been administered or performed in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Board.

I. Any person who has been arrested for any offense arising out of acts alleged to have been committed while the person was operating or in actual physical control of a motor vehicle while under the influence of alcohol, any other intoxicating substance or the combined influence of alcohol and any other intoxicating substance who is not requested by a law enforcement officer to submit to a test shall be entitled to have an independent test of his or her blood, breath, saliva or urine which is appropriate as determined by the Board for the purpose of determining its alcohol concentration or of any other intoxicating substance therein, performed by a person of his or her own choosing who is qualified as stipulated in this section. The arrested person shall bear the responsibility for making all necessary arrangements for the administration of such independent test and for the independent analysis of any specimens obtained, and bear all costs thereof. The failure or inability of the arrested person to obtain an independent test shall not preclude the admission of other competent evidence

bearing upon the question of whether such person was under the influence of alcohol, or any other intoxicating substance or the combined influence of alcohol and any other intoxicating substance.

J. A written report of the results of the test administered by or at the direction of the law enforcement officer shall be made available to the tested person, or his or her attorney, and to the Commissioner of Public Safety. The results of the tests provided for in this title shall be admissible in civil actions."

and renumber subsequent section

and when title is restored, amend accordingly

Passed the House of Representatives the 23rd day of April, 1992.

Speaker of the House of
Representatives

Passed the Senate the ____ day of _____, 1992.

President of the Senate